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. o SOL. STROUD: May it please the Court, State ;
o B >;is calllng the cases against eleven de- |
1Vf‘o : . | fendants. I'd llke to call them around at ,” i
S:t“fv:;" '}k thls time. Ann Shedard . | - . i
; ”l{f; 5 ' f:MR. HUNFVOL"She is in court, your Honor.“ | .
};"?ch,, r:f;;SOL. STROUD. George klrby. . ,Ij:,gg;;“ h fi
?fﬁ':}"; o ~(TlnHE COURT- Is he not here?.., L ‘ -
:?}f7;j_'i | “ soL. STROUD o, sir. :_ . B
“i7}}f3e; ) hl”;THE COURT': Call him, Sherlff
J;f;;:f;i . ;;n (Georce Klrby was called and failed to appear ) _
:f'f?::-v " "ﬁ::jSOL. STROUD: W1111am Dallas Wright, Wayne i
'églw . ; Hoore, Reglnald Epps,_uen3an1 Cﬁavieﬁ James "
- ‘ McKoy, W1111e Farl Vereen, Jer yﬂJacooe, %
o l‘Connle Tyndall and Marviﬁ ?etrick;
| THE COUPT.,wr solicitor, do I understand
Vyou have abnoeior to be made? | _ ‘ _
? ffSOL ST 0UD: Both the State and the defendants.
THE COURT: Do I unuerstand, Mr, Ferguson and
”ef_Mr; Hunevol, that you wish to be heard in the
"absence of tb ju ry? i _v'
| MR. FERGUSON: Yes, we dgo. ?i[é;?f*; .
,moﬂTHE_COURT: I have conferred with ydﬁ ;ehﬁiemen
- as to'where we might have a comfortable place
" for the jury while they are waiting. I am
célw "g01ng to ask the Sheriff to send twelﬁe of
’ - the 3urors or as many as the jury room can )

accommodate confortahly, some jurors to the

e S Lo s s i o e i et
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;fQQMbeIS‘Ff the iurv, tﬁe Sherlff w111 tell

'ﬂfgyou where to go untll we can hear these

o mat tters tﬁat have to be heard in your absence.

'fal Members of the ]ury, 1et me at thls time in-

stnuct you that you are not to talk w1th any

‘:>Lperson about the cases that are to be trled

" this week. You are not to talk among your-

o selves about these cases. You are not to

"f;allow anyone to talk in your presence about

A jury selected among the jurors. I do not

ithese cases.‘ If anyone ‘should atterpt to
;talk to you about these cases take their
anames and brlng it to my attentlon.' I would

| prefer, members of the jury - I don't know who

_1s 901ng to be selected but there will be a

Y

\know who yet will be selected of course. I'll

adnonlsh you not to dlscuss this case with
anyone nor allow anyone to discuss it to you
in your presence. I would prefer that you
not talk to anyone around the courtnou

about anythlng nor allow anyone to talk wmth




‘1ﬁaﬁ;& .;4; = . |
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o | - '*gyon;or in four'preeencel Now remenber this, A
rf; ”tinembers of the jﬁry. 1f you w111 go w1th the‘”
o'y -”fSheriff he w111 show you where to go. .
?F P,i ;(The prospectlve jurors retlred from the | t. _-g:;?};ij
"‘ “‘., : courtroom.) o '
i;; ;? :%;ThE COURT All rlqht Mr; Sollc1tor."f{:; : .i
f;L?_ﬁ f{ v'SOL. STROUD The matter the State would llke i
v1j~t {? . ﬁlafto brlng to ‘the Court's attentlon at this tlme,‘
i%ritﬁ; - . )Efyour Honor, is wrth regard to charges agalnst | i
E??t}; fﬁ;fseven of these defendants - Well ‘there are
ir;"vf; ;?@eleVen defendants. Vine of the oefendants
:izi,w;' »:are charged w1th - or the State w111 be calllng
-\szi- -:bfigfor trial agalnst the defendants the charge for

’conspiring to assault emergency personnel and
“burning of a building, Mike's grocery store.

>5The venue on those cases is presently here in

e

w iPender County. ' Two of the defendants, Ann
'Shepard and oeorge Kirby, who did not appear

. "thls morning, are also charged w1th con5p1ra-

" Ferguson representing Mr. Kirby, that new bills

of indictment charglng each of those with being
"”eaccessory before the fact of burnlnq if the
venue on that could be changed to Pender

County from New Hanover County for trial.at

[ aiciacantch et et s
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.is, tim Is that correct, gentlemen?

. "

MR.,HUNEVOL It is correct as far as I am-

concerned so long as the 5011c1tor s offlce
"[takes some actlon on the two consplracy
t'charqes.‘v | | - :  ;;

4fq”SOL. STROUD The State w111 take actlon on

that.

N

":~'THB COURT : Do I understand that you agree

;that thcae cases you represent may be moved

S

~ to pender County from New Hanover County

-ui?,’fdr trial at this term? '

'“'MR; “UﬁEVOL Assumlng, your Honor, that the

State of North Carolina nol proses the two

- conspiracy charges against my client, Mrs.

'Shepard

SOL. SRROUD- "He State has entered an agree-

':=.f‘ment w1th both Mr. hunevol and Nr. FErguson

relathe to that, your Honor.

‘_'THE COURT: You gentlemen can enter some stipu-

"’.. lation on that.

fE'AR. FFRGUSOV Let me state thls for the record.
~1 belleve we talked about this on August
'v31 when we had the hearlng here on bringing
in a special venire and at that time I did
\agree with Mr. Stroud along the lines he has

;1ndlcated; and as far as I am concerned I am

T o T T P o T T T T e w
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“ilam in a pecullar p051tion because Mr. Kirbv ‘

. has not'anoeared yet. I have made effort tol_
" contact him and have people looklng for him

‘tnow,':i am hopeful he w111 be here. 1 don t -~ .:1

'? know if he w111 be.” 1 went by his house in

”_fcourt and I am not absolutely certain of my

g to abide by that position.
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\"9031t10n in doxng that at this tlme. That is
tlthe-only drawback. ‘ |  7 - B
_”if THE COURT In other words, you want him Here;
;Z“iifMR. FERGUSOW. he is the one that the Court
':_'called and 1 would want hlm to be present at
'f ‘the tlme we enter that agreement for the record.
' THE COURT: Subject to that - .
Vﬁt;vSOL. STROUD. Yes, sir. ﬂhat we are calling
'i{i”ﬁor trlal at this time, your honor, wlll be
“‘nine of the defendant who are charged and will

'.be trled at tnxs tlme for consplracy to assault

emergency personnel and for the burning of

"Mike s grocery store with incendiary devices.
Two of the defendants, Shepard and Rirby, -‘ffe

. should he appear, will be tried with accessory

before the fact of buring Mike's grocery store.

_,There is one other matter to bring before the
'Court s attention in that seven of these

" defendants are charged with assault on emergency.

"i,giwllmlngton thlS morning before comlng to "rf, RV

el
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"personnel this having occurred, aecording
to the State s allegataons, on the same evening
>that Mike' s grocery store was burned being

fFebruary 6, 1971 some half hour to 45 minutes

7'1. prlor to the burnlng of Mike's grocery store.

»

The venue on those seven charges agalnst those
-;seVen defendants is presently in New Hanover
:bonnty. Those seven charges were not called
'var trial in June at the time we had the
“mistrial in some of these cases. The State
would move at this time that the venue on those
" seven cases and egainst those seven defendants
be changed to Pender County bhe moved to Pender
Count? so that we can call those for trial

";aleng with these other charges. The State in

. support of its motion would say that having

)

" oecurred the same evening or within a half
-en hour_before Mike's that it is all part of
a continuing venture process and that the

) charges could be easily consolic
I see no problen so far asrconsolidation for
’these cases for tri 1. S
"' the venue is in New Hanover County. It is
'7 Mr. Ferguson objects to
that. FHe w111 not consent to venue of those

’charges being brought to Pender County. It is

the Stete's contentions that the Court could

RFet)

e |
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"order venue to be changed to Pender County.
.'THE COURT~ Do you mean I have authorlty to
5»change the venue of the cases in New Hanover

L‘and I am 51tting in Pender? You may be rlgnt.

~i‘just don't have any authority for it. 'I

- jurisdiction. State will withdra

fi.don't know, of any authority.

: ﬁ, SOL. STROUD ‘Your Honor may I 1nterrupt

s S

you Just,a second. On secona tnougnt, the

State sees some doubt about your Honor's

~ jectiomn.

.. SOL. STROUD: No, sir.

. several motions. ‘The first I will make is

a motion for the fur nishing of a bill of

particulars; This accessory before the fact

charae was first brought to my attention

fffff

somewhere around the 24 of August and I believe

v- ’th1s bill the otate of Worth Carolina had gone'

directly to the grand jury and had by- passed

the ppellmlnary hearing and I ‘believe they

'j'wént to the grand jury some two or three weeks

prior to apprizing me of the charge of acces-

sory before the fact. Now the State of North

gk o i
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“'f;THE COURT: You are talklng about anything

tCarollna has assured me orally that they have

-

'no other evidence than I apparently have al—"

_ready be apprlzed of. T would like to formally '_E

fﬁmake a motion for a bill of partlculars and

e

,frequpst that the State furnish me the followlng

v\‘)
R

¥ e

i?fTHE COURT ‘Have you given a copy of this to~

f,MR. HUNEVOL, Yes, sir; I have. I had several
_q_montﬁb ago made é simiiar bill deéling with the
v:;two conspiracy'charées,'éome of which was heard.
-?f;by Judge w911s, some of which was denied. B
 ?€The State dld furnlsh me with that information.
'3} “TBE“CQURT: XQU sald th;s new indictment is not
;??;cdﬁspirécy?r;It is accéssory._ Number three
‘aﬁ¥Qouid not be.rélevant.;You say'théibnly thing
:4.f3that is cnanglng is cHanglng the indictment,
'fllsn 't 1t? | H

. MR. HUN“VOL. : Correct.

=5 AL - HA‘\.'A-J_AA‘ | T P PRI,
y uace DJ.J.('J.'CDI 1das airrcaau

Ty o wr

o

' *H;japprlzed you of all the facts?

'D HUNEVOL: T wanldnt s
s B L5

zaaN LW P4 Fal) -~ WV

ey

" MR. HUNEVOL That they have not prev1ously toldr
" me of

—1]'THE COURT: Is there ahything you gentlemen can




—..
o _ e get together on? _
“ ufﬁ*f :“‘ f,j7{;:- - SOL. STROUD There is nothlng addltlonal
| ;-é - .'?1- 7” :The only dlfference in the prev1ous 31tuat10n
R :::j;' ._i! iiii;‘;. and the present situation is the charge.
v 55;4:7:;v f ?'f  AA iTheévid¢npe is the same,  _ |
;;L:. f. | ‘ 5ETﬁE COURT} It is a ﬁew éharge? .They all grew
g;; \ifj;_ { : ';fo”£xljput of the same ci:cumstanceé of fact? |
LLV;>;3‘{ ﬂ f’ biigbi' "MR. HUNEVAL: Your Hdﬁor, I am court-appointed
;;:? o :7' ';11 »'>couﬁse1. I just ﬁanted'to-get this in the
E'TE :j:i >_>- ;Q‘i ;”feéord. | ‘ A
_ _ VTHE'COURT;,You are not asking for a written
QE% ;'7? __‘ ",foTJi ‘i bi11 of particulars, are you?
O | | ':,MR. HUNEVOL: I would like one.

- THE COURT: I mean dué to the time and every-
‘,thing?v | | | | |
" MR. HUNEVOL: I thlnk I can llve with that oral
“H_stipulatlon if, in fact, there is nothing in
addition_ to what I have already been told.
THE COURT: Is there anything else, Mr. Hunevol?
T MR. HUNEVOL: I'd like to make another motion.
'-It ié a motion to inspect the grand jury
'mihuteérandior inspect the grand jurors who
“brought in tﬁis indictment. I personally don't

! 0 3
know whether the grand jury in !

County keeps minutes. -The reason for the

“the grand jury was Officer W. C. Brown of the




"llf;

~ &)

!

ewilmington Police Force. I don't believe
.'ieat anytime in this case Mr. Brown has ever
ifhad any personal informatlon of personal
Af-first-hand information of my client's committing

‘any crime and that if he does have any infor-

mation it is totally hased on the hearsay

hev1dence proferred to him by Mr. Allen Hall
"{fand Mr. Jerome Mitchell, neither of whom went
before the grand jury, and I would 11ke to

'elther see the minutes, if they exist or

examine the grand jurors personally.in the

. alternative I would like to see the indictment
. for accessory before the fact against Mrs.

Shepard dismissed. This is my second motion,

your Eonor. I have one more motion that I

would likebto make for permission to inter-
view Mr. Jerome Mitchell. It is ovr under-
standing that Jerome Mitchell will be the

Stat'e number 2 star witness, and Jerome

'  Mitchell is apparently going to offer testimony

o that my client, Mrs. Shepard executed or was

in éome way an accessory before the fact of *

the burning of Mike's with an incendiary

" device. I don't have any legal authority

for this with me right now, but I 4o have

' some ethical citations that I would like to
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" T would like toistate that as far as Allen T

-

script from the preliminary hearing and we -

' have a pretty good idea of what his testimony
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at Jerome Mitchell will

Hfstaté in this case. I made this motion before

I believe, June 5 and June

) James to thehest of my present recollection,

ed on the motion. He said, “Well

never

H

Vf;ﬂlet's hold off, and we will talk about it a

"little later." The State of North Carolina

‘has resis ted our attempts to interview Mr.

Mitchell and T would like to make this citaticn.
(Cites two) T think that there are as much

_authority, as much legal authority which would

' address itself to the same point of view as

‘there is ethical authority which would permit

us to talk to Jerome Mitchell, and I request

fthat we be pernitted to do this, expecially in

:-1ight of the fact that this thing has never

been Yefore a preliminary hearing. Those are

' my three motions.

o
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" in his bill of particulars were given t

:f, -13- 'jt — T f;'_-' -

'THE COURT: As to the first motion you made,

that is the motion for the bill of particulars,

you say that you are satisfied with the state-

ment that the Solicitor has made as to the

eVidéncé. And are you withdrawing this moation?

- MR. HUNEVOL: I would like to keep that motion

in the record, your Honor, just in case there

' aré>any surprises in the trial.
THE COURT: ﬁéll are you really insisting on a
‘bill of particulars? .

: Mk..HUNEVOL: I think I'd like a written bill

“:‘of particulars if I could have one, your Honor.

THE COURT: Is the State in position to accommo-

date?

SOL. STROUD: May I address myself to that? Mr.
thevdl filed a motion for a bill of particulars
6nubeha1f.of Mrs. Shepard before and Judge

Wells ruled on that motion. As a reasult of
her ruling certain items that he requested

o [ S

Mnims;

o]

certain were not. She denied certain of them.

THE COURT: Has that been since

this last
‘indictment?
SOL. STROUD: No, sir; that was prior to this

present indictment for accessory before the

e's evidence would be the same

TR

AT Y



a4

0
£
0
<!
ol
g
0
o
®
o
o
[
o
fu
rr
g
o}
(24
%]
0
=
H
o]
o]
3
O
H

. MR. HUNEVOL: Yes, s‘i'rr.' - e
THE COURT: Number two, “any overt Qéféé 65-
écfsvwhich could have been included in the
'indictment and vere not whick the State intends
to présent in testimony about the trial". Was
anything in that? 7 | -
SOL. STROUD: That was not in-the firsﬁ mption,
as I recall. .
MR. HUNEVOL: That is correct.
_THE COURT: Do you mean, Mr. Hunevol, any word
to which you have not already been apprized?
 . MR. QUNEVOL: Right. And I £hink, your Honor,
»lI would like to be apprized in writing of the
words that State maintains that Mrs. Shepard
- used to be guilty of this particular offense.
.l THE COURT: She is being charged now with
,acceééory before the fact.
'MR. HUNCVOL: Yes, sir, your Honor.
THE COURT: Number three; you are withdrawihg
pumber three, are you not? -%
MR. HUI-T}JVOL: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Four, "Inform the defendant as to

b s b LR b b S it s aCru e it Ll R S R S e ko e L o
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specific wsras or condﬁct sﬁe-puféo;tedif
employed to counsél, incite, induce, encburgge
other defendants mentioned in the indictment
to commit the acts or alleged acts or else
; ,; supply £hé time in which said words were uttered."”
B Can Sollcltor supply counsel w1th this?
: ?f j::f;jf;ff'rfiif, SOL. STROUD: Thls information Has already been
S A e ’supplled Mr. Hunevol. Pe and I have offices
in the same building. I have talked with Mr.
Hunevol about it. |
MR. HUNEVOL: You have informed me as to words
’ ‘5!w . - ‘ :'f"'  that were supposedly used.
| R SOL. STROUD: Where she was, what time it was,
who else was there.
TMR. HUNEVOL: I don't believe you informed me
‘as to who else was there.

T e ’4~77 :1 ‘f THE COURT: Is there anything particularly in
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MR. HUNEVOL: That is a difficult question to

THE COURT: You sayA"spécific words and conduct
SHe purportedly employed to incite, encourage,

| 'induce the other defendants to commit act or

%8 _ e - acts alleged - " -

— ¥ ’ | | SOL. STROUD: Your lionor, in items 2 and 4

Mr. Hunevol has been supplied information as




T -1g-

to those items. T

THE COURT: Is that right, Mr. Hunevol?

MR. HUNEVOL: Orally, yes, sir; that is correct.

"PHE COURT: And you are withdrawing number 32

CMHE: HUWEVOL Yes, sir. S

THE COURT: And number 1 was passed on by Juége

-t

Wells?

"MR. HU'\I}"VOL' Yes, sir.

THE COURT‘ Motlon ﬁ$r bill of particulars is

-w...-.r /

'denied£4 Motion to 1nspect grand jury minutes

_f,fl /‘ .
and examine grand jurors is denleéiA Third

motion was to interfiew a witness. The Court

will take that under advisement at this tlne.
Mr. Ferguson, do you have any motions?

MR. FERGUSON: Yes, I do, your lionor. I would

1ike to join the motion made by Mr. Hunevol

" t6 interview the witness Jerome Mitchell on

MR. FERGUSON: I would also like to jo in in the

behalf of all the defendants I represent.

THE COURT: I will take that under advisement.

and to examine the granu juroxrs.

- THE COURT: Do you want to be heard?

MR. FERGUSON: NWo, your Honor.

THE COURT: Motion denied. (ffc/zfj;«\.f ' )

= e P e T e ki

MR. FERGUSON: Now, if your Honor please, vhen

" this matter came for trial in June we filed

e

)

" ‘motion to inspect the minutes of the grand jury
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"on behélfuof the defendants a'éouple of-ﬁritten
motions were heard and ruled upon
by Judge Jémes who was presiding at that time.

‘ 4 dgn'tAknow what the status

of those motions is as pertains to this trial.

i

would like to renew each of those motions

"' at this time on behalf of the defendants.

™~ -

We filed a motion for production of evidence
- Y

~——

and disclosure of witnesses which was a written
motion and which should be in the Clerk's file

here: Ve would renew that motion for purposes

| - of this trial. As I recall, Judge James granted
S —

the motion in part. State did furnish to us

- . ' some written information. Now one thing that

wé have not received is a written statement
that the State has from Jerome Mitchell, if
they héve such, and if the State has such
from him we would like to be furnished a copy
of it.
- THE COURT: Did Judge James pass on that?
MR. FERGUSON: At the time Judge James considered
this'motion the State had already furnished us
Ta copy of the written statement by Allen Hall,
- If my memory serves me correctly, at the time
we received the written statement of Allen
Hall the State did not know whether or not
it would be ﬁsing Jerome Mitchell., Subsequent

to that time the State bhecame certain that it

Iy TR Bt S i o P ITEY B B v Za e i
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waé going to use Jerome Mitchell, and since

" that time we have not received any written

statement from him. So Judge James knew at

the timé that we had a written statement from

"~ Allen Hall. Of“course, we did not have one

from Jerome Mitchell, and he held our motion

"% to interview Jerome Mitchell in abeyance.

j;s‘é result of a request by Mr. Ferguson I,

in addition to giving him the written state-

T e

ment of Allen Hall, gave him a copy of a

brief narrative of the testimony of at that time

rwhat appeared to be the prospective witnesses
rfo: the State at this trial. Jerome Mitchell
“was mentioned in that narrative. There was a
“.brief narrative as to wha& his testimony would
be at this trial. We do have a written state-

- ment from Jerome Mitchell. PBut Mr. FErguson

has already'been apprized to some extent .

with regard to what Jerome Mitchell will testify-

“to ag a result of this brief narrative which

RN " I W T YT T

SR A S R R AT e e e o B Sk 2

yeim




0

e

{

fhe-has a copy of.. R =~';‘;u S

" ‘at this time if since the mistrial

whic

" be furnishéd

' }'.-'-19-— ‘

MR. FERGUSON: We have a list of witnesses;

_your Honor, whlch has a one paragraph state-
‘ment stating in substance that Jeromne ultchell

rwill testify about what happened at the church

and what conversatiOn at the church. No par—

tlculars as to what he would testlfy to.

THE CUHBRT: I will take. that under advisemunt

Anything else, Mr. Ferguson?

MR. FERGUSON: Yes, sir. At that time we also
filed a motion for disclosure of any favorable
'evideﬁce that might be in possession of the

- gtate. At that time the State advised the Court

that they had no such evidence in their posses-

sion. We would like to inquire of the State

declared in June there has come into possession
any favorable evidence. If so, we'a
move the Court we be apprized of it and given/

re

an opportunity to imspect it. This motion is

" made under dicision of the U. S. Suprene Court

that favorable evidence

—wihi = 4 13

THEe C OHRT These are the motions that were made

“at the last term of court? ¥ S

MR. FERGUSON: That is right.

‘ THE COURT: You have not reflled +the motions?

B e v i



'MR. FERGUSON: I'd like to incorporaté them

~of any.

- THE COURT

Y,

by reference for our present purposes and re- .

new our motions in toto. The first one was

‘motion for production of evidence and disclosure

- of witnesses. The second one was a motion for

disclosure of favorable evidence.

" THE COURT: Now the first motion I have taken
1:under édvisement as to inspecting the statemeni
16f Jerome Mitchell. The second one, "Is there
_;ényrfavorable evidence that may have come to

'the Solicitor's attention since the last trial?”

Does the Solicitor wish to respond to that

SOL. STROUD: Yes, sir. The State isn't aware

That answers that.

grounds of persons of the black race and persons

age group of 18 to 21. We filed

' along with it a stipulation of counsel in

" support of that motion. We'd like to renew

that motion for the purpose of this trial.
THE COURT: Has it already been passed on?
MR, FERGUSON: Yes, sir. '

" THE COURT: By Judge James?

MR. FERGUSON: Yes, sir. He denied the motion.

:
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- MR. FERGUSON: Yes, sir. ton 2 )
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.THE COURT: Motion denied. (fwrl:‘“ 7 ) »
’; " MR. FERGUSON: We also filed a Similar motion

which is in the file to quash the venire of

petite jurors drawn from Pender County on the

~grounds of racial exclusion and exclusion of
~ young people. Judge James heard and ruled_

" on that motion.

THE COURT: Was it aeni_ed?

o

" THE COURT: Motion denied._  You did not wish to

- offer any further evidence?

of unconstitutionality of the Statute. Judge
James denied that motion.

THE COURT: Do you wish to be heard?
' MR. FERGUSON: No, sir.
| THE COURT: HMotion denied.rerplin 7 )

' MR. FERGUSON: We also filed a motion to sequester

' ‘the jurors during the voir dire examination

because of the publicity that these charges

have had throughout the State of North Carolina.

In order to minimize influence and prejudice

among jurors that if jurdrs were called to the
box one at a time and examined out of the hearing

(]
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‘f‘except the jurors exanined on voir dlre. .

V-THE COURT: Motion denied. (;44ﬂ1 *"vf

TR

of other jurors we would be nakxng a step

towards assurlng a falr tr1a1 for both sxdes.

fﬂl We would renew that motion and ask the Court

that no Jurors be present in the courtroom

"

o MR FERGUSON : Now, 1f your Honor please, as

best I recall, those are the motions that we

uwish to renew. The cases have been called

‘and if it is appropriate we wish to enter a

plea of former jeopardy to the charges. I do

not know whether we should do that at this time

‘or when the Solicitor calls for the plea.

Shall I file it now?
THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. FERGUSON: I have already handed a copy

' to the State. I will hadn the original up to

the Court. Let me state this to the Court, too.

THE COURT: I believe this motion has to be

" .. made after t1ey are arralgned, but before a

EE plea is taken. But it is all right, as far

your Honor, I have requested a transcript of

the former trial from the Court Reporter,

Mrs. S¢lvia Edwards, of Whiteville. I requested




gy

. leave of the Court to

)1 it on August 25. She was unable to do a tran-

'script of the tr1a1 because of other work

that she had. Now I do have, and I would

like to flle Wlth the Court, an aff'a vit

j;from Mrs. Edwards certaln things regardlng
" jthe former trzal. I had it prepared and

' ,picked it up from Ars. Edwards yesterd ay.When

I was conferrlng with Mr. Ballance yesterday

in Wilmington I gave him the original of it,

and he inadvertently put it in his bag. He

i wi11 be back tomorrow. I would like to ask

support of this motion at such time as I can

get it from Mr. Ballance. I apologize to the

Court for not having it now.

ﬁHE COURT : Do you want to be heard, Mr. Fergu-
son?
MR. FERGUSON: Yes, your Honor.

MR. FERGUSOV I would think it would take us

to the noon recess, 12:30.

THE COURT: Sheriff, have the jurors come back

_ in here. 1I will let them go to lunch.

(The prospective jurors return to the courtroom.__

'THE COURT: Members of the jury, it is something

after 1 o'clock. The Court is still hearing

T T TR i dou L i T St
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.State and the ue:enaants. And w

motions and cbnsiﬂéring motions made by both the

These are matters of law in which vou are not
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COncerned; So

Vlunch and come back at 2:30. I don'£ know how

not to discuss these cases with anyone nor

~alloy anyone to discuss it with you or in your

scuss it among yourselves.
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' Let me ask you when you are going to and from
'the courthouse do not llnger in the hallways.

Do not engage in conversation with anyone around

the courthouse or courthouse grounds. You go,

members of the jury. Everyone else please re-

main here and come back at 2:30 to your seats

‘where you are sitting now.

(The jury was dismissed at 12:08 P M.)

MR. FERGUSON: If youf honor please, as stated .

'in the written motion the defendants all objected
to the declaration of a mistrial in June and
now we have entered this plea of former jeopardy. -

vIlthink the circumstances of this case make

thlS case dlfferent from the usual case where

a declaratLOn of a mistrial may have been entered

at the same stage of the trial. 1. The cases

kel il o i ——r s Lo sl g ko coslan st



f

u,f25'p

 were initially set for trial on'the first of

May by the State, seeking an early tr1a1 | Be-
cause of our inability to prepare and be ready
at that tlme we asked for a contlnuance Did

'not get it prlor to the cases actually coming

. to trial. We filed petltlon for revzew in the

"iﬁFederal Court. Subsequently the trial was set '

'for trial on Juine 5 here in Pender County.

Now the defendant, your Honor, are all young

oJmen Who, as we are prepared to show the Court,

have very limited financial means. During the

- course of these proceedlngs they have had to

-~ obtain court counsel for a two day long pre-

liminary hearing, counsel to file for rermoval

in Federal Court, and then on June 5, after

. vigorous efforts, came here and announcecd to

the Court that we were prepared for trial. The
Court opened Monday, June 5. We got-into the

case and for one whole week, your lHonor, defendants
were here on trial. They have had to employ counsel
to bé here for that full week of trial proceedingé.
Now at thé time tﬂe mistrial was declared the

the defendants objecﬁed because as far as they

were concerned and as far as the realities of

the case wvere concerned so much time and effort

b

had been invested in the case by the defendants

andvby the State that aﬁlthat point only the most

LI T
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it vcbmpelling necessity should have warnanted a

 mistrial. Now Mr. Stroud who ha

ﬁ;:“the ball for the State was ill; hut Mr. Stroud
realized he was becoming i1l oh Wedneeday or |
R "hi-h> | . . 'Thursday and he'knew that_Ffidaj when Court
T _k
‘f'A5,Qent.intoxhhe'hoepieal_' hat Monday mornlng,

\iff?f;”§ ‘h,iﬁsj'*liiﬁ;fif-lvam:eorrecﬁa N;Q f?.m Wednewday up until o o
!f'ﬁqhday meyning ho effores at'all that we are aware
| behalf of the State to have |

‘either Mr. Cobb or one of the two other assistants

ghe Sriicitor's office to come into the case

‘{.and proceed wihh the jury selectlon whlle Mr.

:[fVStroud had his illness attended to or. dxagnosed
Now at one point ‘the defendants th;ough counsel
'f?lndlcated their willingness to accomodate Mr.
| " stroud and his condltlon in any way that they
vkcould. Mr. Stroud asked for an early recess on
Frlday, June 9. We had no objectlons whatsoever
7'to an early recess in order to accomodate. But
'ivthe defendants knew then, as they Know now, that
it would élace.them at a severe disadvantage if
ﬁ“"a mistrlal were declared if they had to come
e e x:ia;.back and go through the same proceedings they
- . 'had been through before. The whole purpose of
B R the formef jeopardy protection,'as I understand_-

it, your Honor, is not solely to prevent maltiple

.
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,oonvictions on the same charg, but it is to

. prevent one from being placed in jeopardy.

It is to prevent successive prosecutlons by

" ‘the State where it is possible to avoid that,

the controlling principle being that the defend-

"iv_ants are entltled to be tried by the communal

‘initially summoned or set up to hear their

case. Another prlnciple of the former Jeopardy

bprotectxon is that the State not be placed in

L4

';.a position where it can get more favorable

conditions for a conviction or favorable conditions

' for prosecution. Now when we look at what

1roccurred and what was occurring at the time

" the mistrial was declared I think we have to

have candidly looked at the fact thet the
bdefendants;'all except one, are young black
ﬁen and one is.a-young white lady involved in
this trial; During the ehole process of

questioning jurors both the State and the

defendants alluded to the racial disturbances

that occurred in Wilmington at the time these

~ charges arose. From time to time the State

. alluded to fear that the jury might have by
‘any actions that had taken place around the

courthouse or by supporters of the defendant.

In other words, your Fomnor, tne whole contention

of the jury voir dire for the most part dealt

e el o e o To e s
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‘these cases had arisen. I say that beca
- your Honor, of what the composition o

- We have alliuded to in our motion

e

with the racial disturbances out of which

"4t is relevant in that context we submit,

jury was at the time the mistrial was declared.

n  emmmas v de

" which the State used its pre—emptory challenges

jury. Every pre-emptory challenge that was
used, by the State was used on a bhlack person

at the time the State passed the composition,

recall it and will be reflected in the

- affidavit of the Court Reporter, was 9 whites
‘and 3 blacks. At the time the defendants all

f_passed the jury consisted of just the onpo-

site: 9 blacks: 3 whites. The State then

proceeded with its examination of the voir

dire of the jury Friday morning and up until

the Fridéy recess the composition of the jury
;;had altered to 10 blacks and 2 whites; and we
”say that ﬁhé State couldvhave and should have
'ﬁade preﬁarations for someone in the Solicitor's

office to continue with this case until they

been :

. could have/rejoined by Mr. Stroud. In my

appearance with criminal courts throughout

“the State of North Carolina I am sure is no

different in New Hanover ahd Pendexr County

Coama b dol ioiiatd o Ty Feb o s ore D 2L ) T Tme——Y
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'they had one fron Mr. Mitchell. The detect tives

is that solicitors often try first degree

" murder cases with half hour preparations.

Solic1tors come in and select juries with .

just a bear understandlng of what the facts

'are.inIn this case the State had a transcript

of the preliminary hearing That could have

been offered to any soliCitor or chief solicitor

B who is charged‘with the responsibility of trying
i-_the case.' He could have read that over the

’;weekénd or a night. The State had written

.

- statements from Allen Hall. They tell us now

and 1nvestigating officers were there and

ﬁ[available. There was no reason for the State
‘+o0 ask for a mistrial thther than going on

"~ with the case, and I do believe,I am not

absolutely sure; but the records can be checked,

that this was the only session of criminal

court going on at that time. It wasn't a matter

ir. Cobb, Chief Solicitor, appeared

' on Honday morning and asked the Court for a

. Cobb 4id not relate to the

Court any éffort. that had been made by the

" State to go on with the prosecution. It may

herthat Mr. Stroud's illness would only have
kept him for a few days. At any rate the jury

gelection process was going on. He would have

P R e T T e
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THE COURT: How long did you say it would take

ant. I am judglng on the way t

been well before the jury was selected.

MR. FERGUSON: We had been from Monday, June

.5, until Monday, June 12. Three jurors ha

been eeated by both the State and the defend-

a‘was proceeding at that time. Another week

Aﬂﬂ‘_ ..‘k
11¢ J

certalnly it wo
hhe jury process for the State to go on with

r. Stroud might have been back

before the evidenciary stage of the trial was

reached. I think in viewing this motion, your

Honor, or this plea of former jeopardy, the

Court has te look at what has happened during

intervening periods. The State has made severa

moves in an effort to secure conditions fore

favorable to conviction by the State. The

State filed a motion - I think it was about

the 24th or 25th of August asking that a jury
be brought in from some other county to hear

these cases. The Shate alleged at that time

f?i'ﬁhat they could not get a fair trial in Pender

County, that the State couldn't get a fair trial

in Pender County. Yet at the time these cases

were called in June the State made no objection

to the motion for change of venue in Pender

' County; But here, for some reason, the State

e - S el i et i o
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had decided all of a sudden they couldn't

get a fair trial and they wanted a jury brought
from somewhere else; an effort on the part
of the State to secure conditions more favor-

able to conviction of the prosecution. Since

“that time the State has seen fit to bring Mr.

"1thnsonvinto the case, Mr. Dale Johnson, from

the State Attorney General's office, to assist

. with the prosecution of the State, additional
effort on the part of the State to secure con-
~ditions more favorabie to prosecution or con-
'viction. Just this morning the State initially
‘asked the Court that certain charges which

were not brought up at the June 5th trial be

tried along with these cases, assault on
emergency personnel charges in Wilmington.
Again an effort on the part of the State,for
whatever reasons it has, to secure conditions

more favorable to conviction on the defendants.

The charges on two fo the defendants has been
altered by the State since June 5thy Gharges
-~ against defendants Shepard and Kirby have

B changed; for some reason the State has decided

:mnrm,v; T
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'witnesses we were given,prospective witnesses,

has ex’®nded since June 12th on the efforts

on the part of the State to secure conditions
‘more favorable to prosecution and conviction.
And I would submit to the Court that under these

"fclrcumstances the State should be barred from

prosecuting these cases., Let me just mention
again, your Honor, that these defendants are
required to employ counsel or have been at this

point for all of the proceedings that have

. gone before and even for now; and all of these

defendants are indigent and unable to pay for
that: and we will have alternative motion |

before the Court in that regard if this trial
proceeds further. ¥Now I realize, your Honof,

that most of the cases dealinc

3
¥e!
5.

jeopardy have been cases where a complete jury

ot

has been sworn and impanelle

if you look at any of those cases you will find

that the time expended and efforts expended
by the defendants even though a jury has been

was not as considerable as the time, effort

'and'expense that has been expended by these
: defendants in this trial; and when we look at
- the interest;that are. to be protected by double

 jeopardy clause I thlnk the interests to be

et it Rt oo e st Rt iy Ld cus
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‘than a mere formalism when we look at t!

=33

on these charges. The mere fact that a jury

may have been sworn and empanelled is no more

- 1

underlying interest of the former jeopardy
pfoteétion. I would argue to the

because of the ciréumsfances of th
the beculiar circumstances, the nature and

composition, the subsequent efforts of the

FErguson, do vou know a single

authority for vour motion?

MR. FERGUSON: I don't know of a single precise
sitﬁation.

THE COURT: I am talking about legal authority
by the High Court.

MR. FERGUSON: The case that was written by
Justice Douglas of the U; S. Supreme Court,

Downum vs. U. S. lays out the principles, and

it appears in (cites place found). He lays

"out the relevant considerations. HWow the

“eircumstances of that case were different

— - .
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. was continued until Monday, June 12 without ob
jection; that during the weekend Mr. Stroud's

condition had not impro\

-34-

from this case; that is the case proceeds

-~ further along from a legal point of view than

this case has. ‘I don't know of any case where

the State has spent a week in a trial and then
come in and ask the Court to have a mistrial

"declared. I don't know of any case the State

has secured a mistrial and come back withi an
expanded list of witnesses;where the State has

come back and sought to bring in a jury from

‘another county:where the State has gone to the

State's Attorney General's office and come in
with a Special Prosecutor. I still submit to
the Court that the principles laid down apply

here.

THE COURT: Mr. Ferguson, Judge James found the

facts in this case and it is a rather exhaustive

finding of fact. He states the facts that

occurred in his order and in detail, among which

he found that Mr. Stroud became ill; that it

the thscians ordered his admission to New

' Hanover County Memorial Hospital for further

tests and that thereafter one of the physcians

that in his opinion Mr. Stroud

i
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cases.

MR. FERGUSON: We-are not denying any of that.

I_don't doubt the validity of Mr. Stroud's

‘ iliness. 1 don't mean to give the Court the

‘~iimpre551on that I do. I mean in spite of his

condition Mr, QTroud 1s the A551stant Solic1tor.

The Chief Solicitor is responsible for the

: prosecution.

THE COURT: Mr. Cobb moved for mistrial due to

neither he nor any other member of his staff

' was familiar with the facts of the cases be-

cause Mr. Stroud had done all of the investl-

gatlon and trial preparation; that the assign-
ment of Mr. stroud had been necessary because
of the large caseload and necessity of dividing
the work between Mr. Cobb and his three assis-—

tants, and it would be impossible for any of

" them to prepare thenselves for the case.

MR. FERGUSON: There is not any flndlng on the

A familiarize
O e CAI A ke e Tl A e S

efforts of Mr. Cobb's ©

~ anybody else with the case.

THE COURT: The Court could order a mistrial

“at anytime up until the jury is impanelled




-and after the jury is impanelled upon certain
- findings of facts.

31 admit to the Court

-
0
3]
5
s
ok
0
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. that the law says that until the jury has been
_5mpénelled ﬁhen it ig discretionary with the
,féoﬁrt. I reéognize that fact. Then the law
at after the jury has been impaneled
‘then it can be granted'only for compelling
yecessity in the interest of justice.
lTﬁE COURT: And the Court must find the facts.
' rphat is what was not done in the Crocker case
in Wilson County.
MR. FERGUSON: I am.saying here, your iHonor,
"that we have to look at those cases in the
. context of which they arose. Look at the
?osition of the defendants.
THE COURT: I'll be glad to look at your Supreme
Court case. I want to hear everything you have
to say about it and read any authority you might
cite. But I am just asking you now do you have
‘any authofity? '
MR. FERGUSON: I don't have any authority pre-
cisely to deal with the circumstances of this
case. I am saying to the Court that the pe-
‘culiar circumstances of this case warzmants
| application of the rule of compelling necessity

here. I don't have a case I can show you in

- e ot s cabusbal ol et e owr ot
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precisely - ‘
THE COURT: Do you want to be heard further on
it or show me any

MR. FERGﬁSON: Are the Supreme Court Reports

'MR. HUNEVOL: I'd like to join in the motion

the disclosure of any favorable evidence

for the same reasons Mr. FErguson gave. I
until
not aware of/a few brief moments ago that

"

¥
<

b
n -
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Father Jones ever made any written statement.

'd like to see that if there is a written

(]

statement.

HE COURT: Did you not say you had that statemant?

R. FERGUSON: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: Can you arrange for him to see that?

MR. FERGUSON: Yes, sir.

MR. HUNEVOL: That is the only motion.

 PHE COURT: Let me ask you both. Is there any

evidence you want to offer on any of your motions

or any»furthér argument on any of your motions?
" MR. FERGUSON: The only evidence I would have I

would like leave of the Court to insert the

| affidavit of Mrs. Fdwards regarding the former

trial. I would also like an opportunity to put

gl Clnd SRR el chin i oo
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into the record, the ﬁranscript of the former

trial, in order to protect the record.

THE COURT: I'll_givé you that right. Is thére;

“any evidence you want to present or any further
' argument on any motions?
- MR. FERGUSON: I have no further argument on any -

 of the motions we have presented. Should the

Court be inclined to disallow our plea of former

'jeopardy I would move the Court in the alternative

to order the State to bear the expenses of the
trial for the defendants and to pay counsel. I

would like the Court to establish their indi-

gency.

THE COURT: I'll hear you on that when we come

back. And I‘1ll be glad to look at that case.

Wé'll be back at 2 o®clock and take those matters

up and try to complete them before the jury
comes back.
(The Court recessed from 12:35 until 2 P M.)

would you wait
on the outside? You don't have to go into these

ms. It is a beautiful day. Will you wait

outside until we get through with these motions?

Don't go too far. We'll send for you.

(The prospective jurors retired from the court-
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roomn,)
THE COURT: Are there any other jurors in the
courtroom? (No answer}

THE COURT: Mr, Solicitor, the reason I was a

few minutes late I was in there reading this
case which Mr. Ferguson was speaking of before

. @. Before a court of competent jurisdiction;

fter arraignment; 4., After pé&ea and when a

.competent jury has bheen impanelled and sworn to

make true deliverance in a case.

MR. FERBUSOMN: All of those elements are present
except the last one,

THE COURT: They had not been sworn and impanelled;
and furthermore even after they impanelled them

the Court could declare a mistrial if they

-§gggq physical necessity and the necessity of

doing justice. That is when the facts must be
foﬁnd and so forth. In this case the jury was
not impanelled, but the Court went even further
and found the facts as sét forth in its order.

So I am going to deny your motion. I expect I

PRSI T TR LEirat: Maan o R T
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should make éome findings of fact. Do you want
~me to ao that now or is it agreeable that I make
findings of fact during'the progress of thé
trial? | | i_ » .

MR. FERGUSON: It is agrecable with us that such
time as your lonor wants to make them you can
'make then, |
THE COURT: Do yoﬁ agrée?'

MR. HUNWEVOIL: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Does the State agree?

B60L. STROUD: Yes, sir.

MR. HUMEVOL: Your Honor, for the record I would
.like to except from the rulings on the motions
that I made or joined in. -

THE COURT: I'll dictate the findings of facts
now. | |

Upon the defendantst® plea of former jeopardy,

session of Superior Court of Pender County commenc-

ing June 5;, 1972: that the cases were consoli-
dated for trial; that the defendants were placed
i’on trial on valid indictments before a court of
competent jurisdiction, after arraignment and

~ after plea, but that the jury was not impanelled

in either of the cases; that during the progress

e B e i o e el
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 of the selection of the jury and before the

jury was impanelled the Honorable James T.

'Stroud, Assistant District Solicitor, became ill,
n;_was hospitalized, and fhe Court was advised by

: thé attending physcian that in their opinion

vﬁr. Stroud was unable to proceed with the trial

- of the cases, was being admitted to the hospital

for further tests and treatment over a period

of several days, the result of which they could

not foretell. Judge James further found as a
fact in his order dated 12th day of June, 1972, that

Mr. Allen Cobb, District’Solicitor, was unable

' to continue with the prosecution of the cases

for that neither he nor any other member of his

staff was familiar with the facts in the cases

because Mr. Stroud had done all of the investi-

"gation and trial preparation. Judge James in

his discretion was of the opinion and conclusion
that good causce existed for and that the ends
of justice would best be served by granting

the motion for mistrial and so ordered a mistrial

-in these cases, continuing the cases until a

sﬁbsequent date to be thereafter determined.
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-+o make true deliverance in these cases. The

defendanté‘ plea of former jeopardy 1is, there-

" fore, denied. (ézb“/QZ:;~ b4 )

‘This 11th day of September, 1972.

- MR. FERGUSOW- Your Honor, at “this tlme I would

. move oo behalf of the defendants I represent

that the State be requlred to bear the expenses
of this trial and the former proceedings in

the case.

. THE COURT: Do you wish to be heard further?

'MR. FERGUSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you wish to offer any evidence?

‘MR. FERGUSON: Yes, I do, your Honor.

THE COURT: Let me add to the finding of facts

N And that physical necessity and the necassity

of doing justice which would render impossible

a fair and impartial trial under the law.

The rmotion as to the plea of former jeopardy 1is

hereby denied. (f ;Luzf'z:,\\ 7 )

MR. FERGUSON: Let me state the basis of my

_ motion and then I would like to present some

11

W

evidence. NRumber i, the defendants are
indigent and I will put them on the stand to

establish their indigency; number 2, They have'
been required to undergo two proceedings and it

was not by reason of their own doing or anything
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to do with that. They are being subjected, in
‘effect, to two proceedings, one in June which
‘was terminated for the reason-statéd in the

" order of mistrial, and the subsequent proceed-

ing commencing today. We think that although

it was not completely the State s d01ng that
'“Tis, it had no control over Mr. Stroud s il11-

Anéss, the State aid set in motion the machinery

for the mistrial. So it was, in effect, at the

instance of the State that the defendant had

to-undergo the proceeding in June and now have -

to undergo this proceeding today. We think
that in fairness td the defendants under the
circumstances the State should be reqﬁired
bear the expencés of the trial inclﬁding payiné
the reasonable fees and expenses of counsel of

their choosing. At this time I would like to

. have the defendants sworn.

THE COURT: Now, lir. Ferguson, do you have any
authority for that

MR. FERGUSON: Your Honor, the classic case -in

dlaent defendants
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Wainwright says defendant is not to be dkgcrimi-

nated against because he is poor. Also a Cali-

fornia case. A rich man could afford to hire
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s as necessary and keep them re-

tained for as long as necessary to see the

Lo g et il e i T AT T TR ST TP e



¢ S on
L4 -
'
.- i
o Te
. -
;
PIr—
LI
-
g =,
- oy
- bl i
» v
re -
. R ¢
T

proceedings through to the end. These defend-~

'~ ants have not been able to pay for these pro-

ceedings coming up now. Of course, we were in

‘the proceedings at the outset in June and we

felt under the circumstances that the defend-

ants were entitled to have the same lawyers

viepresent them if that is what they chose to do.

But we think that the State ought to be required
to pay for that.

TKE COURT: Are you saying thét they are unable
to employ counsel; or are you saying that they
ought to be reimbursed for counsel fees hecause

of the action of the State?

-

“MR. FERGUSON: I am aaylnq two things.Basically

the motion is that they ought to have connsel

appointed - not appointed, but they ought to

have the State paying for counsel of their own

sayi’ number 2 that because of the prior pro-
ceedings without any benefit to themselves is
be

that they ought to be reinbursed for that also.

MIE COURT: You are asking for two things then.

MR. FERGUSON: Yes, sir; I am asking for the
State, because of its._action in these cases,
to pay for everything, the first trial and the

second trial.

LMo odan b deit coottudidd
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THE COURT: Are you-émployed for the second trial?

. MR. FERGUSON: I have been reqguested by the de-

fendants and have undertaken to do that, but they

- have not paid me.

THE COURT: Are you employed, or are you not

.émpioyéd? :-_

"MR. FERGUSON: If you mean compensated for my

sérvices, I am not. If you mean I mm going
forward with the case because the defendants
have requested me to do that -

THE COURT: The first is if a defendant ‘is in-

. digent and second if they are able to employ

counsel. That is usually done before the case
comes on for trial.
MR, FERGUSON: Yes., Because of the peculiar

nature of the cases we wanted to nake that

"motion before the Court. They had already en-

gaged me to represent them at the earlier pro-

ceedings. They are not asking here to have counsel

appointed as such, but they are asking to be

allowed to proceed with their same counsel .

" State because it is at the State's instance
h

hat they are on trial. They should not be
required to hire a lawyer and come here and
spend a week and have a mistrial and come bhack

and have the case commence again and have to

~.
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Aemploy coﬁnsel'Again. _

- PHE COURT: You are saying}two fhiﬁgs..-ﬁow; of '
courée, I haven't heard yéu fully and I don't

" know what the evidence will reveai. Buﬁ now.
as far as the mistrial is concerned, Judge
"‘Jémes very prbperly granted the mistrial; and

I have so found in my findings. At least I
jntended to. € have found that the mistrial

- was prdper'and that these defendants have not
been’éut in jeopardy.

MR. éERGUSON? That is correct.

-THE COURT: Let me leave that now for the time
being. If your clients are unable to employ
counsel then that brings up another guestion.
They are, of course, entitled to counsel if they
éannot afford to employ counsel. Now I'11 hear

" you on that.

t
it has been brought about because of some-
‘thing the Staté did. I don't go along with

on that.

x = ) S

lf.MR; FERGUSON: I am saying that is a circumstance
that places them in the position they are in now.
'It.was a cbntributing factor.

',THE CCURT: I can understand the circumstances

that two trials are more costly than one.
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' MR. FERGUSON: Right. We are not asking for

appointive counsel from the indigent list as

" that exists in the County. I want to be clear

with the Court on that.

' THE COURT: Are you asking'me now to appointlcoon—'
7 .Asel for these defendants? | '7" . _ L
'R*;MR FERGUSON Your Honor I am asking the Court

']}to bear the ekpenses of counsel that the de-

foendants have chosen to represent then.

THE COﬁRT- Because they are indigent?

MR FEPGUSON. Because they are indigent, but

:‘, 1ook1ng at what happened in June.

" an affidavit of indigency?

MR. FERGUSON: They have not filed an affidavit.

:“-e;I wililbe glad to put them all under oath, or
-if the Court will permlt us we w111 be gldd to
-ivprepare an aff1dav1t. v
_ THE COURT: How long do you think it will take

,ﬁto present this?

MR. FERGUSON: I don't think it will take very

long, your Honor. T

Fro o
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THE COURT: Could you not put that in affidavit

" form? ‘ "'<,‘”L5

MR. FERGUSON- I can put it in aff1dav1t form

'i?'and be glad to.

Chonor. - e T

THE COURT: Does the State w15h to be heard’ '

. ”‘;SOL. STROUD No, slr: not at thls tlme, your

.-'-. .

btf_THE COURT Suppose we take a short recess and

"you_have the ‘defendants to sign‘an affidavit.

-~ ww wm

.'fif(The‘COuff ;ecessed from 2:50 until 3:09 P H.)

-

'THE COURT : This question of indigency may be

:2fdetermined at any stage., Tne scope of entitle-

.,ment goes all the way through to the tr1a1 and

{wﬁsenten01ng.A It goes 11 the way

entlre process from in custody interrogation

of entitlement. Do you gentlemen agree or

'*fSOL.VSTROUD We are not questloning whether or

. nor the 1law rpauires the appointment of counsel

\-4._. =

N for,an indigent. We just question the indigency.

v ?THE COURT- They may or may not be entitled, but

I have got to make a determination.

'MR FERGU%ON. The only point I was maklng about -
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x R ' the affidavits.We made the motion. Of course, T
- : 1'1;; 3 7f~'A“, .- we have appeared for the defendants up until E;
:T j_thls tlme and the remainder of the trial. =
i : ‘f'What T was prop051ng was that I could take the 3&
E;'i.;‘y,;"2:1 ?jl:,f: “f2.‘affidavits with me thi 'afterﬁoon upon recess =
tj;f B l%iiof the Court and have each of the defendants X
;h" | - :?fflll one out, pre ut those bacﬁ'héré to the B

T -'”T{gﬂzf y;frfi n-”Court in the mornlng.

"‘ T mers

"THE CO T: Bu I have got to make 1n iry myself.

B b oo I - s

c'i'You ha"e already ;fopdééavputting the defendants
é%\M,.n_i;ﬁf;ff,iuff»}-ffann. FERGUSON: nght
. SR iE COURT: I +h1nk the affldav1ts shoﬁld be

7 filed as a matter of recoxd.
L R >~TSQN: All we intend is to have each
C,i;;;;ili‘k;;‘L_“,'hfvg': ‘defendant tell the Court what his financial

T circumstances are. It won't take but a couple

B 7 of minutes each.
. .. i.° THE COURT: All right. Go ahead.
iy “IR.

JOE WRIGHT (WILLIAJ DALLAQ) /belng duly sworn, deposes
‘ﬂfi ;‘~ " and says:
‘ E L DXAMIVATION BY MR. FFRGUSON.
 1 - :3'1‘ ' ¥eafargrw11llam Dallas Wright, Jr., one of the de-
_»‘gma ,  ( fendants in this actioni
. ;/x:\_ﬁE,Eﬁl | a;,rh
X 7 A

& -Bywwhom_aremygu employed?
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: Mt-rig‘rt‘ofﬁ—han&“

. & 7 Do .yeu have any money anyw‘xere w‘uch is held for -yeu-

My

. -. . .‘l ) -, . :, ‘|< - . ‘-':ll . ) . '. ) o . .
g,————maat—:s-;yvur present inicin'e’/"““ R I
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or about the 14th
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&~ For about three weeks. e T T

'Z Do qeu-know what m parents' income is3 i

-owed to yenror com:.ng to yeu?' 7

. " . -

’_A 't o~

K "J_ - 7 -
4’ Z Axe—yon marrled?

AT
7 b

- &~ T Do y,ou own a card .

fA.——ff'N U‘:“

R

AT 7 Dq yod own any property whatsoever?d

_i-A-——-—-nG-l‘

Q___—Iimmuch‘-bon&ar-e—you-nnder‘;&'fﬁou -revall?
G : S :
2 "My bond was $15,000. 00. .
~ -r ) IM
& 1pia you yeurawlf pout bond w1th _YOur own money?
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